#### NORTH LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCIL

#### PLANNING COMMITTEE

#### 6 December 2023

PRESENT: - N Sherwood (Chairman)

N Sherwood (Chairman), C Ross (Vice Chairman), Bell, J Davison, M Grant, Patterson, D Southern and C Sherwood

R Hannigan, J Longcake, N Poole and H Rowson

The meeting was held at the Church Square House, High Street, Scunthorpe.

2502 **SUBSTITUTIONS** 

Councillor C Sherwood for Councillor Wells.

2503 DECLARATIONS OF DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS AND PERSONAL OR PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS, SIGNIFICANT CONTACT WITH APPLICANTS, OBJECTORS OR THIRD PARTIES (LOBBYING) AND WHIPPING ARRANGEMENTS (IF ANY).

The following members declared that they had been lobbied:

Cllr J Davison – applications – PA/2023/311 & PA/2023/1146

Cllr Patterson – application – PA/2023/1146

Cllr Ross – applications – PA/2023/311, PA/2020/1482 & PA/2023/1146

Cllr C Sherwood – application – PA/2023/1146

Cllr N Sherwood – applications – PA/2020/1482 & PA/2023/1146

2504 TO TAKE THE MINUTES OF THE MEETINGS HELD ON 1 NOVEMBER 2023 AS A CORRECT RECORD AND AUTHORISE THE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN.

**Resolved** – That the minutes of the meeting held on 1 November 2023, having been printed and circulated amongst the members, be taken as read and correctly recorded and be signed by the chairman.

- 2505 APPLICATIONS DEFERRED FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS FOR A SITE VISIT.
- 2506 PA/2023/311 PROPOSED CHANGE OF USE FROM A STORE ROOM TO A COMMERCIAL CAR REPAIRS AND TYRE REPLACEMENT GARAGE AT 312 MESSINGHAM ROAD, BOTTESFORD, DN17 2QY (SITE VISIT 11.30AM).

A resident who lived directly behind the proposal urged the committee to refuse the application. She said the commercial aspect to the application would be detrimental to their quality of life, could devalue their property, and it was not a suitable location for such application.

Cllr Longcake spoke as the local Ward member and felt it was not in keeping with the area, and not acceptable to have a workshop so close to residential properties. The noise and possible pollution coming from the garage should not be situated near dwellings.

Cllr J Davison having visited the site said it was a congested area situated near residential properties and a nursery and was not an ideal location for commercial activity. The proximity to the neighbouring gardens was very close and the noise and fumes would be unacceptable. He said it would have an adverse impact on the area and felt it should be refused.

Cllr Bell agreed with the previous speaker and said it was in a very busy area and would have a negative impact on the residents.

It was moved by Cllr J Davison and seconded by Cllr Ross –

That planning permission be refused for the following reason –

The proposed development would result in inappropriate adverse impacts on the amenity of surrounding residents in terms of noise and fumes. The proposals are therefore contrary to policies DS1 and DS4 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan, and paragraphs 174 and 185 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

Motion Carried.

2507 PA/2023/1436 PLANNING PERMISSION FOR AN AIRCRAFT HANGAR EXTENSION AT THE GREEN HANGARS, HIBALDSTOW AIRFIELD, REDBOURNE ROAD, BRIGG, DN20 9NN (SITE VISIT 11AM).

**Resolved** – That planning permission be approved in accordance with the recommendations contained within the officer's report.

- 2508 MAJOR PLANNING APPLICATIONS.
- 2508a PA/2020/1482 OUTLINE PLANNING PERMISSION FOR 60 DWELLINGS WITH APPEARANCE, LANDSCAPING, LAYOUT AND SCALE RESERVED FOR SUBSEQUENT CONSIDERATION AT LAND OFF OAK AVENUE, SCAWBY.

The Planning Officer gave an update to committee.

Three objectors spoke against the application. The areas of their concerned cover several issues. These included, very little consultation had taken place in the village of Scawby, important open space provision that they did not wish to lose, surface water flooding issues, infrastructure would not be

able to cope with the influx of people, access would be an issue along with road safety. They felt it was too large a development and the village could not accommodate it with other developments already in progress, and it would change the character and landscape of the area.

Two speakers spoke in support of the proposal. In doing so they indicated that they did not believe there was any concerns for flooding, and foul water issues had been closely looked at with Anglian Water. They felt it would bring several benefits to the village along with several different bungalows and houses to accommodate all generations. They said consultation with the village and Parish Council had taken place and residents wanted the development.

Cllr Ross said she had listened to the residents, and she was not against the principle of the development, it was just the design and layout that was causing concern. She said it was out of character and would cause harm to the locality.

Cllr J Davison stated that the land was not located within the development plan, and was designated LC11 open space, and he also had a lot of concerns about the surface water drainage.

Cllr Bell said he also had a number of concerns with the development, and it conflicted policy LC11.

It was moved by Cllr Ross and seconded by Cllr Davison -

That planning permission be refused for the following reason –

The proposed development would result in demonstrable harm to the character and appearance of the surrounding area, including the designated Area of Amenity Importance. The proposals are therefore contrary to saved policies DS1, H5, H8 and LC11 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan (2003), policies CS2, CS5 and CS7 of the North Lincolnshire Core Strategy (June 2011), and government guidance set out in the National Planning Policy Framework (September 2023).

Motion Carried.

# 2508b PA/2023/58 PLANNING PERMISSION FOR A BATTERY ENERGY STORAGE SYSTEM AND ASSOCIATED WORKS AT LAND NORTH OF CHAPEL LANE, KEADBY.

An objector addressed the committee and stated that she had lived in her property for 23 years and the proposal would have a big impact on her life and her current views. She said there would be noise issues from the fans operating all the time, with the possible emerging fire risks. It was too close to residential properties and the lorries visiting would spoil the area.

In support of the application, it was highlighted that it was vital for the energy

supply in the UK. These kinds of applications played a big role in the Country's renewable energy source and meeting net zero targets. She said it would improve the landscape affects and they would continue to engage with the community, and it was fully policy compliant.

Cllr Ross had concerns about the narrowness of Chapel Lane and felt a site visit should be held.

Cllr Grant asked the Planning Officer to try and seek the Fire authorities views before the next meeting.

It was moved by Cllr Ross and seconded by Cllr C Sherwood –

That a site visit be held, and it be brought back to a future meeting of this committee.

Motion Carried.

- 2509 PLANNING AND OTHER APPLICATIONS FOR DETERMINATION BY THE COMMITTEE.
- 2510 PA/2022/1852 OUTLINE PLANNING PERMISSION FOR 9 DWELLINGS WITH ASSOCIATED ACCESS AND PUBLIC OPEN SPACE (APPEARANCE, LANDSCAPING, LAYOUT AND SCALE RESERVED FOR SUBSEQUENT CONSIDERATION) AT LAND OFF BRAITHWAITES CLOSE, BARNETBY LE WOLD, DN38 6BF.

The agent speaking in support of the application said that it was a good sustainable application, on a large site with no other practical use. It would be a small residential area and a good fit for the site that currently had no amenity value. It would also have a good mix of properties.

Cllr C Sherwood said the residents did not share the previous speakers views and felt that access and water drainage were a concern. So, he felt a site visit should be held.

It was moved by Cllr C Sherwood and seconded by Cllr Ross -

That a site visit be held and be brough back to a future meeting of this committee for a decision.

Motion Carried.

2511 PA/2022/2217 OUTLINE APPLICATION FOR THREE DWELLINGS, INCLUDING DEMOLITION OF EXISTING WORKSHOP, WITH ALL MATTERS RESERVED AT 77–79 HIGH STREET, WOOTTON, DN39 6RR. When addressing the committee an objector stated that she felt the site plan

had been submitted on four occasions and was still in-correct. She also stated that there was inadequate parking, problems with the visibility splays, loss of residential amenity, overbearing, loss of privacy and light and it would not be in keeping with the area.

Cllr Hannigan spoke as the local Ward member raising his concerns with the application. He stated that the size of the site had changed, and the current workshop fitted well within the small area. He felt that the impact would not be good on the neighbouring properties and urged the committee to take a look at it before making a decision.

Cllr Ross agreed with the previous speaker and felt a site visit would be beneficial.

It was moved by Cllr Ross and seconded by Cllr J Davison -

That a site visit be held, and the application be brought back to a future meeting of this committee for a decision.

Motion Carried.

2512 PA/2023/613 OUTLINE PLANNING PERMISSION FOR ONE DWELLING WITH ACCESS, ALL OTHER MATTERS RESERVED FOR SUBSEQUENT CONSIDERATION AT LAND OPPOSITE RIDGEWOOD, 76 WEST END ROAD, EPWORTH, DN9 1LB.

The applicant addressed committee and outline the proposal and in doing so highlighted that the dwelling would not be in open countryside, no historic agriculture and had received support from the Town Council.

Cllr Bell stated that looking at it on paper he would support the application as there had only been two objections and could not see an appropriate reason for refusal and suggested a site visit might be held.

It was moved by Cllr Bell and seconded by Cllr C Sherwood -

That a site visit be held, and the application be brought back to a future meeting of this committee for a decision.

Motion Carried.

2513 PA/2023/616 PLANNING PERMISSION TO ERECT A DETACHED DWELLING AND GARAGE AT ELSHAM HOUSE, BRIGG ROAD, WRAWBY, DN20 8RH.

**Resolved** – That planning permission e approved in accordance with the recommendations contained within the officer's report.

2514 PA/2023/1026 PLANNING PERMISSION FOR THE CHANGE OF USE OF LAND FOR THE STATIONING OF CARAVANS AND THE ERECTION OF A DAYROOM FOR RESIDENTIAL PURPOSES, LAYING OF HARDSTANDING AND OTHER ASSOCIATED WORKS AT PLOTS 3 AND

### 4, LEYS LANE, WINTERTON, DN15 9QT.

An objector addressed the committee and stated that it was situated in open countryside and not a suitable location, that she felt would be harmful to the location. She stated it was contrary to planning policies, would like to traffic problems on a single carriageway with no passing places, and urged the committee to refuse the application.

Cllr Rowson as the local Ward member also spoke against the applications after receiving several complaints from residents. She said it was in the open countryside and not suitable.

Cllr Bell said he sympathised with the objectors but sites like this were required, and it was in an isolated location. He stated that he felt permission should be granted due to lack of available sites and saw no problems with this proposal.

Cllr Ross said after listening to all the objections and the Ward member she did not feel this was the right location.

**Resolved** – That planning permission be refused in accordance with the recommendations contained within the officer's report.

# 2515 PA/2023/1059 PLANNING PERMISSION TO SITE A SHIPPING CONTAINER AT NETHERHOLME, 53 BRETHERGATE, WESTWOODSIDE, HAXEY, DN9 2AA.

**Resolved** – That planning permission be approved in accordance with the recommendations contained within the officer's report.

# 2516 PA/2023/1146 PLANNING PERMISSION TO ERECT TWO DWELLINGS AT LAND SOUTH OF CHURCH STREET, ELSHAM, DN20 0RG.

Speaking against the application a resident stated he was speaking on behalf of 17 objectors. He stated it was out of development boundary, and the location of the dwelling was closer to the water course and could impact on the drainage. He felt it was more suited to an agricultural setting, and not in the village where parking would also be an issue.

The agent spoke on behalf of the applicants and in doing so spoke about the positive benefits the application would have rather than the negative ones. He referred to the officer's report that highlighted that it was acceptable in design terms within a suitable location. He stated that the design whist subjective had been previously praised by planning officers.

Cllr C Sherwood questioned the size of the proposal, not the design. He said it was too large for the village setting and the street scene, along with the concerns associated with possible flooding.

**Resolved** – That planning permission be refused in accordance with the recommendations contained within the officer's report.

2517 PA/2023/1150 PLANNING PERMISSION FOR A REPLACEMENT SHED AT 15 HAMMERTON ROAD, BOTTESFORD, DN17 2SA.

**Resolved** – That planning permission be approved in accordance with the recommendations contained within the officer's report.

2518 PA/2023/1258 PLANNING PERMISSION TO ERECT A STORAGE AND DISTRIBUTION UNIT AT SANDTOFT GATEWAY, SANDTOFT ROAD, WESTGATE, BELTON, DN9 1FA.

**Resolved** – That planning permission be approved in accordance with the recommendations contained within the officer's report.

2519 PA/2023/1364 PLANNING PERMISSION FOR EXTENSION AND INTERNAL ALTERATIONS PLUS NEW GARAGE AND DRIVE AT 122 HIGH STREET, EPWORTH, DN9 1JS.

**Resolved** – That planning permission be approved in accordance with the recommendations contained within the officer's report.

2520 PA/2023/1489 PROPOSED NEW DWELLING AND GARAGE AT PARBOLA, THORNTON ROAD, GOXHILL, DN19 7HN.

**Resolved** – That planning permission be approved in accordance with the recommendations contained within the officer's report.

2521 PA/2023/1494 PLANNING PERMISSION TO ERECT A TWO-STOREY HOUSE AND DETACHED DOUBLE GARAGE AT LAND BETWEEN NASZA CHATA AND FAIRLAWNS, JERICHO LANE, EAST HALTON, DN40 3PZ.

**Resolved** – That planning permission be approved in accordance with the recommendations contained within the officer's report.

2522 PA/2023/1540 PLANNING PERMISSION TO ERECT A TWO-STOREY SIDE EXTENSION AT 2 COBBLESTONE COURT, BELTON, DN9 1PF.

**Resolved** – That planning permission be approved in accordance with the recommendations contained within the officer's report.

2523 PA/2023/1559 APPLICATION TO VARY CONDITION 3 OF PA/2019/930 DATED 23/10/2020 TO READ "PRIOR TO THE OCCUPATION OF THE DWELLING MARKED AS PLOT 1." AT LAND SOUTH OF TETLEY HOUSE, TETLEY, CROWLE, DN17 4HY.

**Resolved** – That planning permission be approved in accordance with the recommendations contained within the officer's report.

2524 PA/2023/1567 PLANNING PERMISSION TO ERECT A FIRST-FLOOR SIDE AND REAR EXTENSION AT 55 BATTLE GREEN, EPWORTH, DN9 1JT.

**Resolved** – That planning permission be approved in accordance with the recommendations contained within the officer's report.

2525 **RESERVED MATTERS.** 

2526 PA/2021/1034 APPLICATION FOR APPROVAL OF RESERVED MATTERS (ACCESS, APPEARANCE, LANDSCAPING, LAYOUT AND SCALE) PURSUANT TO OUTLINE PLANNING PERMISSION PA/2017/392 DATED 15/06/2018 FOR SIX FOUR BEDROOMED DETACHED DWELLINGS AND INTEGRAL GARAGES AT LAND NORTH OF THISTLE DOWNE, SCOTTER ROAD, MESSINGHAM, DN17 3QE.

The agent spoke in favour of the application updating the committee on all the work and preparations that had taken place since last requested by the Planning Committee. He stated that further consultation had taken place with both the planning department and flood authority, and that the water courses would be unaffected, and the sewers would be adopted by Severn Trent, with drainage issues covered by panning conditions and a recommended approval by the officer.

Cllr Poole spoke as the local Ward member with continuous concerns about the drainage system and possible surface water issues. He stated that the original reasons for refusal still applied as there was no adequate drainage system.

Cllr Ross stated that the info requested by the committee had still not come through as required, and therefore still had the same concerns about the drainage system being adequate.

Cllr Grant felt that the water survey had been carried out and that the committee had all the details necessary to decide.

Cllr Bell also felt that if the application was refused it would be detrimental to the Authority and sympathised with the residents. He stated that the conditions would be sufficient to cover all concerns if approved.

It was moved by Cllr Ross and seconded by Cllr Patterson –

That planning permission be refused for the following reason –

The drainage strategy fails to demonstrate whether the development would result in an acceptable method of surface water drainage disposal, whether infiltration would be feasible on the site and subsequently whether the development would be safe from the risk of flooding or increase flood risk elsewhere. The application is therefore considered contrary to policies DS16 of the North Lincolnshire Local Plan and CS18 of the adopted Core Strategy, and paragraphs 159 to 169 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

**Motion Carried.** 

2527 ANY OTHER ITEMS, WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT, BY REASONS OF SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES, WHICH MUST BE SPECIFIED.